
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\2.1 2021 03 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

  Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/92468062787 Meeting ID: 924 6806 2787 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 8, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 8, 2021 be approved as 

circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Special Council Meeting, February 16, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Special Council Meeting held February 16, 2021 be 
 adopted. 
3.2 Regular Council Meeting, February 22, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held February 22, 2021 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Superintendent Keith Bramhill, Inspector Andrew Martin, Staff Sergeant Ted Lewko, 
 Corporal Neil Roemer, Introduction of the RCMP Coquitlam Detachment Senior 
 Management Team 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

Via Zoom 
March 8, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/92468062787


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\2.1 2021 03 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

4.2 Brandon Ma, Partner, Audit, & Amar Sanghera, Manager, KPMG LLP, verbal report 
 regarding 2020 Audit Planning Report dated March 8, 2021  
4.3 Brian Hirsch, Belcarra Resident, regarding Corporate Policy No. 210 regarding 
 Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard,  Financial Consultant, report dated March 8, 2021 regarding the 

Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
Recommendation: 
That the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan report dated March 8, 2021, be 
received for information 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 8, 2021 regarding   
COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 

 Recommendation:  
 That the COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant report dated March 8, 2021 from the 

Financial Consultant, be received for information. 
5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, 

regarding the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Increase Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
 Recommendation: 

That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 be read a 
third time. 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Short Term 
Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy update 

 Recommendation: 
a) That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw      

No. 580, 2021”, be read a first and second time and be referred to Public 
Hearing;  

b) That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 581, 2021”, be read a first and second time; 

c) That “Village of Belcarra Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 582, 2021”, be read a first and second time.  

5.5 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
dated March 8, 2021 regarding Provincial FireSmart Economic Recovery Fund 
Grant Application 

 Recommendation: 
 That Council approve an application for a 2021 FireSmart Economic Recovery 
 Fund Grant in the amount of $500,000 that will be managed by the primary 
 applicant, the City of Coquitlam. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\2.1 2021 03 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
7. BYLAWS 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.18 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Honourable Nelly Shin, Member of Parliament, Port Moody-Coquitlam, Anmore & 
 Belcarra, letter dated February 22, 2021 regarding Establishing a National 3 Digit 
 Suicide Prevention Hotline to Canada 

Recommendation: 
 That the Village of Belcarra endorse the 9-8-8 crisis line initiative; and 
 That staff be directed to send a letter indicating support to the local MP, MPP, 
 Federal Minister of Health, the CRTC and UBCM municipalities to indicate the 
 support of Belcarra. 
8.2 Carmen Jaklin, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 2, 2021 regarding Possibility 
 of Grant Money for Anmore Elementary 
 Recommendation: 
 That the Anmore Elementary grant request be forwarded to budget discussions for 
 consideration. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Kerri Palmer Isaak, School Trustee, School District 43 (Coquitlam), newsletter 
 dated February 2021 regarding Community Update – Happy Spring 2021 Village 
 Families 
8.4 Katherine Vanlerberg, Co-Chair, Gleneagle Secondary After-Grad Committee, 
 email dated February 15, 2021 regarding Celebrating Grads of 2021 in SD43 
8.5 Jay Chalke, Ombudsperson, Province of BC, letter dated February 4, 2021 
 regarding Quarterly Reports: October 1 – December 31, 2020 
8.6 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated February 23, 2021 
 regarding Equity and Diversity on the E-Comm Board  
8.7  Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Board of Trustees, Meeting Minutes 
 of February 18, 2021 
8.8 Brian Hirsch, Belcarra Resident, email dated February 18, 2021 regarding 
 Clarification & Comments on Corporate Policy 210 regarding STRA & B&B   
8.9 Dave Warren, Belcarra Resident, email dated February 22, 2021 regarding 
 Council Consideration – Concept of Establishing Group Wharfs in Bedwell Bay 
8.10 Barb & Randy Hubbs, Belcarra Residents, email dated February 22, 2021 
 regarding Group Docks 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 8, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\2.1 2021 03 08 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.11 Jillian Hull, Belcarra Resident, letter dated February 23, 2021 regarding Notice of 
 Motion – New Docks in Bedwell Bay 
8.12 Nancy Johnston, Belcarra Resident, email dated February 24, 2021 regarding 
 Group Wharves 
8.13 Janet Robertson, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 1, 2021 regarding Active 
 Transportation Path on Bedwell Bay Road 
8.14 Jol & Jodi Drake, Belcarra Residents, email dated March 2, 2021 regarding 
 Letter for Belcarra Council Supporting Pedestrian Walkway 
8.15 John Stubbs, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 2, 2021 regarding Support to 
 Mayor & Council for Pathway Along Belcarra Bay Road 
8.16 Ian MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 2, 2021 regarding Safe 
 Walking Paths 
8.17 Des Wilson, Belcarra Resident, letter received March 2, 2021 regarding Short 
 Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) 
8.18 Naing Family, Belcarra Residents, email dated March 3, 2021 regarding Support 
 for Walking Areas    

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the March 8, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if 
the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 

  (c) labour relations or other employee relations; 
  (d) the security of the property of the municipality; 

(i)  the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose.”  

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the March 8, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 
Minutes of the Special Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held February 16, 2021 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark  
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 

Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Special Council Meeting, February 16, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the agenda for the Special Council Meeting, February 16, 2021 be approved as 

circulated.  
 CARRIED  

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, December 7, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
   That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held December 7, 2020 be 
 adopted. 

 CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 February 16, 2021 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  February 16, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.1 2021 02 16 Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, overview regarding Strategic Planning          
 to discuss pertinent items for the Regular Council Meeting scheduled for            
 February 22, 2021 
 L. Dysart outlined the reason for the Special Council meeting. Due to the By-Election, 
 several reports remain outstanding. Council will to decide which reports will be included 
 on the February 22, 2021 Council Agenda.  
 Consensus of Council was that the following reports be placed on the Regular Council 
 Agenda for the meeting scheduled for February 22, 2021: 

A.  Chris Boit, ISL Engineering, will provide a verbal report  
  Discussion ensued with regard to the priority of the Water System, the Water 
  Committee and the status of information to be provided by District of North 
  Vancouver (DNV). 

B.  Changes in Internal Cost Allocations 
  Discussion ensued with regard to this report. 

C.  Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
  L. Dysart outlined the policy with regard to the Council Indemnity Bylaw.   

D.  2021 Belcarra By-Election Report will be included on the Agenda. 

E.  Pooni Group Memo, Belcarra Year in Review 2020 – 2021 
  Discussion ensued with regard to the benefit of an Annual Summary.  

F.  Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B)         
  Policy Update 
  It was noted that this item was deferred at the Regular Council meeting held   
  on March 9, 2020. A Council motion is required to lift the motion from the table 
 procedurally before it may be brought back to Council. 

G. Notice of Motion – New Docks in Bedwell Bay 
  Discussion ensued with regard to the Notice of Motion.   

L. Dysart advised that the items for consideration for the February 22, 2021 Council 
Agenda were complete. It was noted that additional reports will be discussed at an 
upcoming Public Special Council Strategic Planning Session. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor Ross acknowledged that he is pleased to work with Council as a group, plus
 the Chief Administrative Officer and staff. He welcomed John Snell as the new Council 
 member. 
 Mayor Ross noted that Public Works staff, Doug Bakker and Brad Smith, provided 
 good snow removal service during the recent snowfall event. 

 

 



SPECIAL COUNCIL MINUTES  February 16, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.1 2021 02 16 Special Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 No items. 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Jim Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the question asked by Council 
 to the  District of North Vancouver (DNV), with regard to various water flow scenarios. 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the February 16, 2021 Special Council Meeting be adjourned at 8:10 pm. 

CARRIED      
Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



             
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Others in Attendance 
Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering  
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services 
Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:10 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 22, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, February 22, 2021 be revised by 

removing: 
  Item 6.1  Councillor Wilder, report dated February 22, 2021 regarding Notice   

       of Motion - New Docks in Bedwell Bay   
 And that the Agenda be approved as amended. 

 CARRIED  
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 February 22, 2021 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.2



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
3.1 Oath of Office Ceremony & Inaugural Meeting, February 8, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
   That the minutes from the Oath of Office Ceremony & the Inaugural Council Meeting 
 held February 8, 2021 be adopted. 

 CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering, provided a verbal update. 
 C. Boit outlined the status of continued discussion with the District of North Vancouver 

(DNV) as it relates to the requested analysis of water flows per second. DNV advised 
that they are behind in the work they are doing particularly due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic. It is anticipated that this information will be received as soon as possible.  

 It was noted that the Council motion from the Regular Council meeting held    
September 14, 2020 requesting water levels, is the basis for the information being 
requested from DNV. 

 C. Boit advised that the Standard Operating Procedure Manuals for the water system, 
including the reservoir and the pump house, are currently being drafted with input from 
the Water Operators. An operation of the water system checklist for the Water Operators 
will be included. Considerable discussion ensued.   

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the verbal update provided by Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL 
Engineering, be received for information. 

 CARRIED 
5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated February 22, 2021, regarding 
 Changes to Internal Cost Allocations 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report regarding Internal Cost Allocations. Council discussed 
 various aspects of the proposed policy and the report. 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 

That Corporate Policy No. 217, titled “Internal Cost Allocations” be approved.  
CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 3 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report 
dated February 22, 2021 regarding Council Indemnity Increase 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report regarding Council Indemnity Increase. Council asked 
pertinent questions. Discussion ensued.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 be read a first and 
second time. 

CARRIED 
5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, provided an overview of the report provided 

by Lisa Zwarn, Chief Election Officer, dated February 22, 2021 regarding the 2021 
Belcarra By-Election 

 L. Dysart provided an overview of the 2021 Belcarra By-Election report. It was noted 
that, in spite of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the By-Election was safely and successfully 
completed. Discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That the report dated February 22, 2021 from the Chief Election Officer regarding the 
2021 Belcarra By-Election be received for information.   

CARRIED 
5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Pooni Group 

Memorandum – Year in Review 2020 – 2021 
 Richard White provided an overview on the Pooni Group Memorandum – Year in 

Review 2020 – 2021. He outlined the significant planning related work that was 
undertaken or initiated in 2020. 

 Discussion ensued with regard to the considerable amount of projects undertaken and 
the overall cost of the work by the Municipal Planners that was required to complete  
the projects. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That the memorandum dated January 27, 2021 from Pooni Group regarding the Year  
in Review 2020 – 2021 be received for information. 

CARRIED 
5.6 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Short Term Rental 

Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy update deferred at the 
Regular Council Meeting held March 9, 2020. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 

That the Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy 
update be lifted from the table; and 
That the Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy 
update be brought forward to the Regular Council Meeting on March 8, 2021. 

CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 4 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
6.1 Councillor Wilder, report dated February 22, 2021 regarding Notice of Motion - New 

Docks in Bedwell Bay  
 This item was withdrawn from the agenda. 
6.2 Mayor Ross, verbal report regarding Share’s Virtual Imagine Gala 2021 
 Mayor Ross advised that he will attend Share’s Virtual Imagine Gala 2021 on behalf of 

the Village and that the tickets are complimentary for Mayors. He noted that the Mayors 
are working together to assist with the valuable work that Share provides in the 
community. 

 Recognition 
 Mayor Ross recognized John Reynolds and Jim Chisholm for their contributions as 

moderators for All Candidates during Belcarra Municipal Elections.  
 Fraser Health 
 Mayor Ross provided an overview of a recent Fraser Health meeting that he attended. 

He advised that information will be forth coming from Fraser Health with regard to 
upcoming vaccination clinics for residents 80 years of age and older. 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw    
 No. 576, 2020 (Fire Sprinkler Heads) 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 576, 2020” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.29 be received. 

CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Doug Allin, Head Coach Men’s, Mark Dunlop, Head Coach Women’s & Rick Benson, 
 Executive Director, Softball BC, letter received January 8, 2021 regarding Request   
 for COVID Relief Funding for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 2022 Canada 
 Summer Games 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the Request for Financial Support for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 
 2022 Canada Summer Games be forwarded to budget discussions for consideration. 

CARRIED 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 5 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 
8.2 Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, Communities Embracing Restorative Action 
 (CERA) Society, letter dated December 27, 2020 regarding a Request for a Community 
 Grant for the Community Youth Justice Program 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That the request for a Community Grant in the amount of $353.00 to be provided to the 
 Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society for support of the 
 Community Youth Justice Program 2021 Fiscal Year be forwarded to 2021 Budget 
 discussions for consideration. 

CARRIED 
8.3 Janice Boyle, Executive Director, Crossroads Hospice Society, letter received 
 December 28, 2020 regarding a Request for a Contribution  
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the Crossroads Hospice Society Request for a Contribution be forwarded to  
 budget discussions for consideration. 

CARRIED 
8.4 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated February 11, 2021 regarding 
 Belcarra Community Path (full report available at the Village office) 
 Considerable discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That the email from Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, dated February 11, 2021 
 regarding Belcarra Community Path be brought forward to 2021 Strategic Planning  

CARRIED 
8.5 Tara McKinley & Pauline Nielsen, Grad 2021 Co-Chairs, Heritage Woods Secondary 
 School, letter received February 15, 2021 regarding 2021 Commencement 
 Celebration 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the request for a donation to the Heritage Woods Secondary School Grad 
 Celebration be forwarded to 2021 Budget discussions for consideration. 

CARRIED 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.6 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 3, 2020 
 regarding Amending Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future to Re-designate 
 Regional Parks Lands to Conservation and Recreation (full report available at the 
 Village office) 
8.7 Constable Deanna Law, Media Relations Officer, Coquitlam RCMP, letter received 
 December 10, 2020 regarding Coquitlam RCMP Welcomes a New  Officer in Charge 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 6 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.8 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair, Board of Education, letter dated December 11, 2020 
 regarding Directions 2025 Strategic Goals and Objectives (full report available at the 
 Village office) 
8.9 Jason Krott, Manager, Marine Operations & Fleet, Vancouver Fraser Port Authority, 
 letter dated December 11, 2020 regarding Buoys for Speed Control in Indian Arm  
8.10 Tony Geheran, Executive Vice-President & Chief Customer Officer & Rob Aiello,     
 General Manager, Telus, letter dated December 15, 2020 regarding letter of 
 Appreciation & Seasons Greetings 
8.11 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 15, 2020 
 regarding the Appointment of Councillor Clark to 2021 Metro Vancouver Committees 
 Councillor Clark noted that the COVID-19 Response & Recovery Task Force work has 
 been transferred to the Mayors’ Committee. 
8.12 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated December 16, 2020 
 regarding Policy Review Summaries – Update to Metro 2040, the Regional Growth 
 Strategy (full report available at the Village office)  
8.13 Kathy Moore, Mayor, City of Rossland, letter dated December 16, 2020 regarding 
 letter to Honourable Premier John Horgan, Honourable Minister Selina Robinson, 
 Honourable Minister Adrian Dix and Honourable MLA Katherine Conroy, regarding 
 Letter of Support for the Corporation of the City of Vernon for Universal No-Cost      
 Access to All Prescription Contraception Available in BC Under the Medical Services 
 Plan 
8.14 Margo Wagner, Chair, Cariboo Regional District, Gabe Fourchalk, Mayor, District  of 
 Wells, Bob Simpson, Mayor, City of Quesnel, Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of Williams Lake, 
 Mitch Campsall, Mayor, District of 100 Mile House, letter dated December 18, 2020 to 
 BC Utilities Commission regarding BC Hydro Streetlighting Rate Increase / Termination 
 of Private Light Systems 
8.15 Ken Christian, Mayor, City of Kamloops, letter dated December 18, 2020 regarding 
 Overdose Crisis and Call for Overdose Action Plan  
8.16 Chris O’Riley, President & CEO, BC Hydro, letter received December 23, 2020 
 regarding Community Relations Annual Report (full report available at the Village  office) 
8.17 Sean Galloway, Director, Regional Planning & Electoral Area Services, Metro 
 Vancouver, letter dated December 23, 2020 regarding Policy Review Summaries – 
 Update to Metro 2040, the Regional Growth Strategy 
8.18 John Dooley, Mayor, City of Nelson, letter dated January 8, 2021 to Honourable      
 Adrian Dix, Minister of Health, Government of British Columbia regarding Vaccination 
 Priority for Essential Critical Infrastructure Municipal Employees 
8.19 Linda Buchanan, Mayor, City of North Vancouver, letter dated January 11, 2021 to 
 Honourable George Heyman, Minister of Environment & Climate Change Strategy 
 & Minister Responsible for TransLink regarding Implementing a Province-wide Ban 
 on Anticoagulant Rodenticides 
8.20 Geoff Bowlby, Director General, Census Management Office, Statistics Canada, 
 Government of Canada, letter dated January 13, 2021 regarding 2021 Census of 
 Population 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 7 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.21 Jerry Dobrovolny, Commissioner / Chief Administrative Officer, Metro Vancouver, letter 
 dated January 21, 2021 regarding Regional Greenways 2050 (full report available at     
 the Village office). 
8.22 Mayor Jack Crompton, Lower Mainland Local Government Association, Past President, 
 letter dated January 26, 2021 regarding 2021 Call for Nominations for Lower Mainland 
 LGA Executive & 2021 Virtual AGM & Convention Resolutions Notice, Request for 
 Submissions  
8.23 Nathan Davidowicz, email dated February 4, 2021 regarding George Massey 
 Crossing Task Force and email dated February 6, 2021 regarding Transit System 
 Redesign (BC Transit and TransLink) Watch the Two Videos (On-Demand Transit) 
8.24 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letters dated February 5, 2021 to 
 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver and Jack Froese, Chair, 
 Zero Waste Committee, Metro Vancouver regarding Single-Use Item Reduction 
 Advocacy for Consistent Regional Regulation (full report available at the Village office)  
8.25 Roger Hanna, email dated February 5, 2021 regarding 2020 Fouling of Waters Off 
 of Barnet Marine Park and Rocky Point – Minister Response and Follow-up (full report 
 available at the Village office) 
8.26 Diane Langman, Chair, Regional District of Kootenay Boundary, letter dated 
 February 4, 2021 to Honourable John Horgan, Premier, Honourable Selina 
 Robinson, Minister of Finance, Honourable Adrian Dix, Minister of Health, and 
 Honourable Katrine Conroy, MLA Kootenay West, regarding Letter of Support for  the 
 Corporation of the City of Vernon   
8.27 Robert Simons, President, Port Moody Foundation, email dated February 10, 2021 
 regarding Call for Applications: Healthy Communities Initiative – Apply Starting 
 February 9, 2021 
8.28 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated February 12, 2021 
 regarding Additional Policy Review Summaries – Update to Metro 2040, the 
 Regional Growth Strategy (full report available at the Village office) 
8.29 Cathy Peters, BC Anti-Human Trafficking Educator, Speaker & Advocate, letter dated 
 February 16, 2021 regarding Raising Awareness regarding Human Sex Trafficking, 
 Sexual Exploitation & Child Sex Trafficking in British Columbia (full report available at 
 the Village office) 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Rob Begg, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to Item 6.1 which was withdrawn 
 from the Agenda. 
 John Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to recreational docks. 
 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the recording for the 
 Council meeting held February 16, 2021. 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 22, 2021 

Page 8 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the February 22, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:38 pm. 

CARRIED      
Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



Audit Planning Report P a g e | 1

 kpmg 
 

Village of Belcarra 
 

Audit Planning Report for the year ended 
December 31, 2020 

Prepared on March 2, 2021 for presentation on 
March 8, 2021 

 

kpmg.ca/audit 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.2



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 1 

Table of contents 
Executive summary 2 

Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 3 

Areas of audit focus for financial reporting 5 

Audit risks 6 

Materiality 7 

Audit quality and transparency 8 

Key deliverables and milestones 9 

New auditing standard 10 

Appendices 11 
 

  

 

The contacts at KPMG in connection  
with this report are:  

Brandon Ma, CPA, CA 
Engagement Partner 
Tel: 604-691-3562 
bjma@kpmg.ca 
 
 
Amar Sanghera 
Manager 
Tel: 604-691-3292 
amarsanghera@kpmg.ca 
 
 

 

This Audit Planning Report should not be used for any 
other purpose or by anyone other than those management 
and Council. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability 
for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third 
party as this Audit Planning Report has not been prepared 
for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any 
third party or for any other purpose. 

At KPMG, we are passionate about earning your trust. We take deep 
personal accountability, individually and as a team, to deliver 

exceptional service and value in all our dealings with you. 

At the end of the day, we measure our success from the only 
perspective that matters – yours. 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 2 

Executive summary
Areas of focus for financial reporting 

Our audit of the Village of Belcarra (the “Village”) is risk-focused. In planning 
our audit we have taken into account key areas of focus for financial 
reporting. These include: 

• Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19; 
• Tangible capital assets 
• Payroll and other operating costs 
• Legal claims 

See pages 3 to 6. 

Effective communication 

We are committed to transparent and thorough reporting of issues to 
Council. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings and 
communications throughout the year. If you have any comments you would 
like to bring to our attention, please contact Brandon Ma. 

See Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

 

Audit materiality 

Materiality has been determined based on total budgeted expenses. We 
have determined materiality to be $55,000 (2019 - $50,000). 

See page 7. 

Quality control and independence 

We are independent and have a robust and consistent system of quality 
control. We provide complete transparency on all services and follow the 
Village’s approved protocols. 

See page 8. 

New accounting and auditing standards 

There are no new accounting standards effective for the Village’s 2020 fiscal 
year.  

A new auditing standard, CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and 
Related Disclosures, is effective for the Village’s 2020 fiscal year. 

See page 10 for further details. 

Current developments 

Please refer to Appendix 2 for the current developments updates, including 
COVID-19 resources. 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 3 

Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 
As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to evolve, the Village will continue to assess the impact on its operations and finances and consider the implications on 
financial reporting. We have analyzed the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic situation on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2020 and discussed the audit and financial reporting implications with management.  

We provide the following information for the review of Council and describe the additional procedures that we will be performing. As the COVID-19 pandemic is 
a dynamic situation, we will continue to update our Audit Plan as the situation warrants. We will communicate any additional changes to our Audit Plan to 
Council in our Audit Findings Report. 

Audit implications 

Considerations Audit implications 
Conducting the 
audit work 

˗ KPMG is fully paperless and poised to undertake a remote audit in an efficient manner. We have established a secure ShareFile 
platform to facilitate the sharing of information with management. We have discussed the details of the audit with management, 
and we are ready to undertake the audit as planned and on schedule. 

˗ The ability for the audit to commence is highly fluid and dependent on management’s ability to physically or digitally access 
underlying documents in a safe and healthy manner. 

General 
considerations 

˗ Many organizations have been required, out of necessity, to amend process activities and controls, and as such, segregation of 
duties and approval of transactions may also have been impacted. 

˗ We will obtain an understanding of what changes to process activities and controls have been implemented, if any, to determine 
if the planned audit procedures are appropriate. We have conducted preliminary discussions with management and will confirm 
our understanding of any significant changes by performing walkthroughs of transactions. 

˗ We will consider the impact of COVID-19 on the Village in performing our risk assessment, substantive testing, analytical 
procedures, and completion activities. 

Subsequent event 
 

˗ Currently, we expect that COVID-19 may continue to impact the Village’s operations and finances subsequent to year-end.  
˗ An assessment should be made by management of any potential COVID-19 financial implications. Significant actions 

undertaken by the Village should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, including a statement as to whether or not 
these factors present uncertainty over future cash flows, cause significant changes to assets and liabilities, and/or significantly 
impact future operations. Measurement of the estimated financial effect should be disclosed, or it should be stated if the effect is 
not determinable. 

˗ We will work with management to customize the wording of the subsequent event note for the Village’s specific situation. 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 4 

Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 (continued) 
Financial reporting considerations 

Considerations Financial reporting considerations 
Investments ˗ Management should continue to monitor the performance of the investment portfolio to identify indicators that the values may 

be potentially permanently impaired. Management should continue to review information received about its investments to 
ensure it is reliable with respect to the investment values.  

˗ We will inquire with management about the performance of the investments and evaluate whether any indicators of permanent 
impairment have been identified. We will review investment statements and other information received from the investment 
manager to determine the impact on the portfolio values. 

Accounts 
receivable 

˗ Management will continue to monitor the collection of receivable balances. This includes ensuring provisions for uncollectible 
amounts are appropriate based on the ageing and expected collectability of balances given the current environment. 

˗ We will perform an enhanced review of management’s analysis, including the ageing of receivables and assess whether the 
provision is reasonable. 

Revenue and 
expenses 

˗ Management will continue to analyze the changes in revenue and expenses relative to the prior year and identify the impacts of 
COVID-19. 

˗ We will review management’s analysis to understand the impacts of COVID-19 and assess whether the variances from the prior 
year balances are reasonable to ensure revenue and expenses reported in the financial statements is complete and accurate.   

COVID-19 Safe 
Restart Grant 

− In November 2020, the Village received $380,000 of COVID-19 Safe Restart grant funding from the Province of British 
Columbia. This funding supports the Village as it deals with increased operating costs and lower revenue due to COVID-19. 
The Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (the “Ministry”) has provided information about eligible costs that can be funded 
by the grant, stipulations around spending of the grant and reporting requirements. 

− We are in the process of working with management to review the accounting treatment for the grant. We will review the items 
being funded by the grant and ensure that the appropriate accounting treatment has been applied to the grant. 

˗ The Ministry has requested that all local governments receiving the grant include a schedule in the financial statements 
indicating the total grant received and eligible costs funded by the grant. We will review the schedule to ensure that it is in 
accordance with the Ministry’s reporting requirements. The schedule may be unaudited according to the Ministry. 

 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 5 

Areas of audit focus for financial reporting 
Areas of focus Why are we focusing here? Our audit approach 

Tangible capital assets Tangible capital assets represent a 
significant portion of assets for the 
Village.  

˗ Detailed testing of asset additions, including inspection of supporting documentation to 
determine if additions are capital in nature and to test accuracy of amounts recorded. 

˗ Detailed testing of dispositions including inspection of supporting documentation and 
assessing if the gain or loss on disposition has been recorded appropriately. 

˗ Review the reasonableness of amortization expense recognized. 

˗ Review agreements for contractual commitments and related disclosure requirements. 

Payroll and operating 
costs 

The Village incurs payroll and 
operating costs which are 
significant expenses of the Village’s 
operations. 

˗ Update our understanding of the processes and controls over the payroll and procurement 
activities. 

˗ Perform analytical procedures to understand the change in payroll and operating costs 
relative to the prior year, and corroborate all significant variances noted by reviewing 
supporting documentation. 

Legal claim The Village may be subject to legal 
claims creating an obligation for 
financial statement purposes 

˗ Discuss legal claims with management as well as review legal invoices and Council 
meeting minutes. 

˗ Review management’s assessment of any legal claims. 

˗ Obtain written confirmation from the Village’s external legal counsel. 

 
 

 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 6 

Audit risks  
Professional requirements Why is it significant? 

Risk of material misstatement due to fraud resulting from management 
override of controls  

This is a presumed risk of material misstatement due to fraud.  

Our audit approach 

As the risk is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address this risk. These procedures 
include: 
− Testing of journal entries and other adjustments,  
− Performing a retrospective review of estimates, and  
− Evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions. 

Inquiries required by professional standards 

Professional standards require that we obtain the views of Council on the risk of fraud. We make similar inquiries to other Village finance management as 
part of our planning process: 
− Are you aware of, or have you identified any instances of actual, suspected, possible, or alleged non-compliance of laws and regulations or fraud, 

including misconduct or unethical behavior related to financial reporting or misappropriation of assets? If so, have the instances been appropriately 
addressed and how have they been addressed? 

− What are your views about fraud risks in the entity? 
− How do you exercise effective oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud in the entity and internal controls 

that management has established to mitigate these fraud risks? 
− Has the Village entered into any significant unusual transactions? 

 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 7 

Materiality 
Materiality is used to identify risks of material misstatements, develop an appropriate audit response to such risks, and evaluate the level at which we think 
misstatements will reasonably influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and qualitative factors. To respond to aggregation risk, 
we design our procedures to detect misstatements at a lower level of materiality. Professional standards require us to re-assess materiality at the completion 
of our audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for planning purposes remains appropriate.  

Materiality determination Comments Amount 

Materiality Determined to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of identified misstatements 
on the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial statements.  
The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $50,000. 

$55,000 

Benchmark Based on total budgeted expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020. 
This benchmark is consistent with the prior year. 

$2,031,725 

% of Benchmark The prescribed range is between 0.5% and 3% of the benchmark.  
The corresponding percentage for the prior year’s audit was 2.7%. 

2.7% 

Audit misstatement posting 
threshold 

Threshold used to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit.  
The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $2,500. 

$2,750 

. 

 

We will report to Council: 

Corrected audit misstatements 

Uncorrected audit misstatements 

 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 8 

Audit quality and transparency 
KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and determination to deliver independent, unbiased advice and opinions, and also 
meet the requirements of Canadian professional standards. Quality control is fundamental to our business and is the responsibility of every partner and 
employee. The following diagram summarizes the key elements of our quality control system. 

  

 

 

What do we mean by audit quality? 
Audit Quality (AQ) is at the core of everything we do at 
KPMG.  

We believe that it is not just about reaching the right 
opinion, but how we reach that opinion.  

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when 
audits are:  

˗ Executed consistently, in line with the requirements 
and intent of applicable professional standards within 
a strong system of quality controls, and  

˗ All of our related activities are undertaken in an 
environment of the utmost level of objectivity, 
independence, ethics, and integrity. 

 
Our AQ Framework summarises how we deliver AQ.  
Visit our Audit Quality Resources page for more 
information including access to our Audit Quality and 
Transparency report. 

Audit Quality Framework  

 

Governance and 
leadership 

Code of 
conduct, ethics 

and 
independence 

Associating 
with the right 

clients 

Performing 
audits in line 
with our AQ 

definition  

Appropriately 
qualified team, 

including 
specialists 

Smart audit 
tools and 

technology 

Methodology 
aligned with 
professional 
standards 

Honest and 
candid 

communication 
Transparency 

Industry 
expertise and 

technical 
excellence 

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2019/12/kpmg-audit-quality-2019.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2019/12/kpmg-audit-quality-2019.pdf


 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 9 

Key deliverables and milestones 
 

 

 
 

 
Provide audit planning 

report to Council 

 
 

 Present audit findings 
report and draft auditors’ 

report to Council 

December 2020 March 2021 March 2021  April 2021  

Audit planning 

 
 

 

Year-end audit field work 

 
 

 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 10 

New auditing standard  
Standard Overview Link 

CAS 540 Auditing 
Accounting Estimates and 
Related Disclosures 

The new standard is effective for the Village’s 2020 fiscal year-end. 

Expected impact on the audit: 

˗ More emphasis on the need for exercising professional skepticism. 
˗ More granular risk assessment to address each of the components in an estimate (method, 

data, assumptions). 
˗ More granular audit response designed to specifically address each of the components in an 

estimate (method, data, assumptions). 
˗ More focus on how we respond to levels of estimation uncertainty. 
˗ More emphasis on auditing disclosures related to accounting estimates. 
˗ More detailed written representations required from management. 
 

CPA Canada 
Client Briefing 

  

https://www.cpacanada.ca/en/business-and-accounting-resources/audit-and-assurance/canadian-auditing-standards-cas/publications/client-briefing-cas-540-revised
https://www.cpacanada.ca/en/business-and-accounting-resources/audit-and-assurance/canadian-auditing-standards-cas/publications/client-briefing-cas-540-revised


 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 11 

 

Appendices 
 

Appendices 
 

 
Appendix 1: Required communications 
 
Appendix 2: Current developments 
 

 

  

 

 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 12 

Appendix 1: Required communications 
Auditors’ report Engagement letter 

A copy of our draft auditors’ report setting out the conclusion of our audit 
will be provided at the completion of the audit. 

The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well 
as management’s responsibilities, are set out in the Agreement for Audit 
Services dated October 18, 2017. 

Audit findings report  Management representation letter 

At the completion of the audit, we will provide our findings report to 
Council. 

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion of 
the audit. In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the 
representation letter will be provided to Council. 

Independence Internal control deficiencies 

At the completion of our audit, we will re-confirm our independence to 
Council. 

Significant control deficiencies identified during the audit will be communicated 
to Council. 

 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 13 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends 
Current Developments, created by the KPMG Public Sector and Not-for-Profit Practice, summarizes regulatory and governance matters impacting public 
sector entities today, or expected to impact them over the next few years. We provide this information to help public sector entities understand upcoming 
changes and challenges they may face in their industry. Some of these developments may not impact the Village directly, but we believe it is important for 
management to understand what is happening in the sector.  

Public sector accounting standards 

 

Standard Summary and implications 

Impact of COVID-19 ˗ In response to the impact of COVID-19 on public sector entities, PSAB has approved deferral of all upcoming accounting 
standards by one year and will issue non-authoritative guidance on the effects of COVID-19. 

Asset Retirement 
Obligations 

˗ The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The effective date was deferred by one 
year due to COVID-19. 

˗ The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated 
with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Retirement costs will be recognized as an integral cost of 
owning and operating tangible capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this area. 

˗ The ARO standard will require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future costs of any legal obligations 
to be incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the initial liability will be 
added to the historical cost of the asset and amortized over its useful life. 

˗ As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity will have to:  
• Consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be recognized with no corresponding 

increase in a financial asset; 
• Carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in relation to all controlled TCA to 

determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to asset retirements; 
• Begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to coordinate with resources outside 

the finance department to identify AROs and obtain information to estimate the value of potential AROs to avoid 
unexpected issues. 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 14 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Public sector accounting standards (continued) 

Standard Summary and implications 

Revenue ˗ The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The effective date was deferred by one 
year due to COVID-19. 

˗ The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue 
recognition and its measurement.  

˗ The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must ensure 
the recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.  

˗ The standard notes that unilateral revenues arise when no performance obligations are present, and recognition occurs 
when there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to 
the revenue. 

Employee Future 
Benefit Obligations 

˗ PSAB has initiated a review of sections PS3250 Retirement Benefits and PS3255 Post-Employment Benefits, 
Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits. In July 2020, PSAB approved a revised project plan.  

˗ PSAB intends to use principles from International Public Sector Accounting Standard 39 Employee Benefits as a starting 
point to develop the Canadian standard. 

˗ Given the complexity of issues involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from the review of the 
existing guidance, PSAB will implement a multi-release strategy for the new standards. The first standard will provide 
foundational guidance. Subsequent standards will provide additional guidance on current and emerging issues. 

Public Private 
Partnerships (“P3”) 

˗ PSAB has proposed new requirements for the recognition, measurement and classification of infrastructure procured 
through a public private partnership. PSAB in the process of reviewing feedback provided by stakeholders on the 
exposure draft.  

˗ The exposure draft proposes that recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it controls the 
purpose and use of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use, and it controls any 
significant interest accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.   

˗ The exposure draft proposes that the public sector entity recognize a liability when it needs to pay cash or non-cash 
consideration to the private sector partner for the infrastructure.   

˗ The infrastructure would be valued at cost, with a liability of the same amount if one exists. Cost would be measured by 
discounting the expected cash flows by a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the 
project.  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 15 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Public sector accounting standards (continued) 

Standard Summary and implications 

Purchased Intangibles ˗ PSAB has approved narrow-scope amendments to PS1000 Financial Statement Concepts and PS1201 Financial 
Statement Presentation, and issued new Public Sector Guideline 8, Purchased Intangibles to allow recognition in financial 
statements of intangibles purchased through an exchange transaction.  

Concepts Underlying 
Financial Performance 

˗ PSAB is in the process of reviewing the conceptual framework that provides the core concepts and objectives underlying 
Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

˗ PSAB is in the process of developing exposure drafts for the proposed conceptual framework and proposed revised 
reporting model, and their related consequential amendments.  

˗ PSAB is proposing a revised, ten chapter conceptual framework intended to replace PS 1000 Financial Statement 
Concepts and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The revised conceptual framework would be defined and 
elaborate on the characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. Additional information 
would be provided about financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements. General recognition and 
measurement criteria, and presentation concepts would be introduced. 

˗ In addition, PSAB is proposing: 
• Removal of the net debt indicator, except for on the statement of net debt where it would be calculated exclusive of 

financial assets and liabilities that are externally restricted and/or not available to settle the liabilities or financial 
assets. 

• Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus (deficit) 
to net assets (liabilities). 

• Restructuring the statement of financial position to present non-financial assets before liabilities. 
• Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new statement 

called the statement of changes in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the changes in each 
component of net assets (liabilities). 

• A new provision whereby an entity can use an amended budget in certain circumstances. 
• Inclusion of disclosures related to risks and uncertainties that could affect the entity’s financial position. 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 16 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Public sector accounting standards (continued) 

 

  

Standard Summary and implications 

Financial Instruments 
and Foreign Currency 
Translation 

˗ The accounting standards, PS3450 Financial Instruments, PS2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS1201 Financial 
Statement Presentation and PS3041 Portfolio Investments are effective for fiscal years commencing on or after April 1, 
2022. The effective date was deferred by one year due to COVID-19. 

˗ Equity instruments quoted in an active market and free-standing derivatives are to be carried at fair value. All other 
financial instruments, including bonds, can be carried at cost or fair value depending on the public sector entity’s choice 
and this choice must be made on initial recognition of the financial instrument and is irrevocable. 

˗ Hedge accounting is not permitted. 
˗ A new statement, the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses, will be included in the financial statements. 

Unrealized gains and losses incurred on fair value accounted financial instruments will be presented in this statement. 
Realized gains and losses will continue to be presented in the statement of operations. 

˗ In July 2020, PSAB approved federal government narrow-scope amendments to PS3450 Financial Instruments which will 
be included in the Handbook in the fall of 2020. Based on stakeholder feedback, PSAB is considering other narrow-scope 
amendments related to the presentation and foreign currency requirements in PS3450 Financial Instruments. The 
exposure drafts will be released in summer 2020 with a 90-day comment period. 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 17 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Our discussions with you and what KPMG is seeing in the marketplace - both from an audit and industry perspective - indicate the following is specific 
information that will be of particular interest to you. We would, of course, be happy to further discuss this information with you at your convenience. 

Thought leadership 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

2019 Audit Quality and 
Transparency Report 

Learn about KPMG's ongoing commitment to continuous audit quality improvement. We are 
investing in new innovative technologies and building strategic alliances with leading technology 
companies that will have a transformative impact on the auditing process and profession. How do 
we seek to make an impact on society through the work that we do? 

Link to report 

Put your data to work to 
gain competitive advantage 

There is no "digital economy". The economy is digital and "digits" refer to data. Data is the lifeblood 
of every organization on this planet and organizations that embrace this notion are well positioned 
to grow as industries continue to evolve and disrupt at an ever increasing pace.  

Link to report 

Predictive analytics, it 
works 

CEOs recognize the value that predictive analytics delivers to their decision-making process. Link to report 

Creating the workforce of 
the future 

You can’t transform the organization without also transforming the workforce. It may be time to 
rethink the people strategy. 

Link to report 

Accelerate Introducing KPMG’s 2021 edition of Accelerate, a series of articles and videos offering insight into 
the key issues driving Board agendas, including: 

− Cyber risk 

− Internal control over financial reporting, disclosures and regulation 

− Digital disruption 

− Enterprise risk management 

− The evolution of environmental, social and governance (ESG) and disclosures 

Link to report 

Board Leadership Centre KPMG provides leading insights to help Board members maximize boardroom opportunities. Link to site 

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/advisory/risk-consulting/data-and-analytics.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2018/05/predictive-analytics-it-works.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2018/05/creating-the-workforce-of-the-future.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/new-world-new-reality.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/misc/board-leadership.html


 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 18 

Appendix 2: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
COVID-19 pandemic resources 

Resources Summary Links 

Resources for management 
and Council 

Please visit our COVID-19 website for resources regarding the topics below. This site is being 
updated daily based on information being released by federal, provincial and municipal news 
releases. 
− Business continuity guide 
− Immediate actions to take 
− Medium to long-term actions 
− Tax considerations and a summary of federal and provincial programs 
− Legal considerations 
− Financial reporting and audit considerations 
− Global perspectives 

COVID-19 Alerts 
(Live Link) 

 

  

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/03/the-business-implications-of-coronavirus.html


 

 

 

kpmg.ca/audit 

 

 

KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the Canadian 
member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”). 

KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries. 

The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct and separate 
entity, and describes itself as such. 

© 2021 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 

KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html
https://www.instagram.com/kpmgcanada/
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGCanada
https://twitter.com/kpmg_canada
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-canada/


 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: March 8, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan report dated March 8, 2021, be received for information 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to introduce the Village of Belcarra Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan, to 
provide information related to the Village current financial position (provides context for budget discussions) 
and to seek Council direction in terms of a Draft Financial Plan which can be brought forward for public 
consultation and subsequent adoption. 

Background 
Pursuant to the Community Charter municipalities must adopt a 5-year Financial Plan and a related tax rates 
bylaw before May 15th of each year, and “a council must undertake a process of public consultation regarding 
the proposed Financial Plan before it is adopted.”   

A Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan document is attached which provides both summarized and detailed 
information related to the Village provisional 5-year operating and capital plans as well as other pertinent 
financial information and comparisons.  

Report 
Impact of Strategic Planning 
Council is currently undertaking a strategic planning process which may impact the Village 2021 – 2025 
Financial Plan. At the time of writing this report and preparing the attached budget document the results of 
Council strategic planning process was unknown. The Village Draft Financial Plan can be updated based any 
impacts from the strategic planning process and under the Community Charter Financial Plans may be 
amended at any time via bylaw.  
 
2020 Financial Results 
The 2020 year-end process including preparation of the draft 2020 financial statements has been completed 
and the annual audit will be occurring shortly. The Village preliminary 2020 financial results are 
summarized below so the that Council has some context as to the current financial position of the Village 
when making 2021 budget decisions.   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 2 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
The Village net debt (financial assets less liabilities) is moving in a positive direction. In 2020 net debt has 
been reduced by approximately $686,000. Based on the current trend the net debt should be eliminated in 
about 2-3 years, at which time the Village should be in a net financial asset position. 

Village of Belcarra Financial Position 

 2020 Year-End 
(unaudited) 

2019 Year-End 2018 Year-End 

Financial Assets $2,531,737 $2,062,667 $1,850,225 

Financial Liabilities $3,962,108 $4,179,609 $4,342,633 

Net Debt $(1,430,371) $(2,116,942) $(2,492,408) 

 
The Village unrestricted surpluses increased by $9,000 in 2020 and its reserve funds increased by $337,000. 
The Village also has $181,000 of restricted and unused COVID-19 Restart Grant funds that may be used for 
approved COVID-19 items in 2021 including loss of revenue.  

 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 3 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests (Appendix “B”) 
The items shown in attached Appendix “B” have been forwarded to budget discussions including a number 
of grant requests. The grants provided over the past 3 years versus the annual budgets follows. As shown, the 
entire grant budgets have not been used for the past 3 years. 

 
Council direction is requested in terms which items from Appendix “B” that Council would like to include in 
the 2021 budget including those organizational grant requests with the associated dollars that Council wishes 
to support.  
 

 
Summary of Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan 
A summary of the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan follows including the provisional tax and user rate 
increases built into the plan, the regular and ongoing revenues and expenses, the resulting reserve and 
surplus transfers and the planned capital expenditures. The 2020 budget number are also provided for 
comparison purposes. For each 1% increase in property taxes additional revenue of $8,500 is generated and 
for each 1% increase in Water and WARD user rates, $2,700 and $1,200 respectively, are generated.  The 
Draft Plan purposely reflects consistent tax and user rate increase over the next 5-years so as to avoid “peaks 
and valleys” in taxes and utility rates.  
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 4 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
 

Summary of Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan with 2020 Budget Comparisons 

Description 
2020 

Budget 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Property tax increases 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating 
Revenues  $1,373,000 $1,471,000 $1,543,000 $1,618,000 $1,635,000 $1,754,000 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating 
Expenses $1,112,000 $1,152,000 $1,104,000 $1,065,000 $1,083,000 $1,102,000 

General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & 
Surplus (includes Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $318,000 $376,000 $499,000 $613,000 $665,000 $715,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $282,000 $318,000 $352,000 $390,000 $432,000 $475,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $219,000 $292,000 $331,000 $388,000 $373,000 $375,000 
Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & 
Surplus  

$64,000 $26,000 $20,000 $2,000 $58,000 $100,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $123,000 $135,000 $149,000 $163,000 $180,000 $197,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $110,000 $148,000 $158,000 $177,000 $181,000 $185,000 
WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & 
Surplus 

$13,000 $(13,000) $(10,000) $(13,000) $(1,000) $12,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $395,000 $389,000 $509,000 $602,000 $722,000 $827,000 

Planned Capital Expenditures $4,259,000 $426,000 $404,000 $278,000 $264,000 $407,000 
*Numbers based on the current draft financial plan. Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes.  

 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 5 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
Highlights in Draft 2021 Budget 
The main highlights in the respective 2021 operating budgets are as follows: 

General Operating Fund 

• Provisional general property tax increase of 5%. 
• $1.47 million of regular operating revenues and $1.15 million of regular operating expenses 

(includes $130,000 of revenue and expense for Major Road Network). 
• Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network (MRN) and the Water and 

WARD operating funds at 50% phased in level for 2021.  
• Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (budget of $100,000), Asset Management 

Plan / Long-Term Financial Plan (budget of $75,000) and Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
(budget of $25,000) with combination of reserve and grant funding. 

• $376,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to reserves and surplus (includes $57,000 to the 
Community Gas Tax Reserve Fund). 

Water Operating Fund 

• 10% increase in Water user rates for those connected to the water system and for those not 
connected to the water system. 

• $318,000 of regular operating revenues and $292,000 of regular operating expenses. 
• Allocation of centralized support costs charged to Water operating funds at 50% phased in 

level for 2021.  
• Budgeted increase in water usage and budgeted cost increases for the purchase of water from 

the Greater Vancouver Water District (GVWD) and from the District of North Vancouver (for 
water distribution). These factors together are increasing by 35%.  

• $26,000 of contributions or transfers to reserves and surplus.  

WARD Operating Fund 

• Increase in WARD user rates of 10%. 
• $135,000 of regular operating revenues and $148,000 of regular operating expenses. 
• Allocation of centralized support costs charged to WARD operating fund at 50% phased in 

level for 2021.  
• Large increase (39%) in collection, hauling and disposal costs from the contractor are 

negatively affecting the WARD operating fund.  
• Contribution from WARD surplus of $13,000 required in 2021. 

 
Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home 
The overall increase in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in 
Belcarra, based on various scenarios, is shown below. This information is provided for discussion 
purposes.  
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 6 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
March 8, 2021 
Page 7 of 7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.docx 

 
Summary 
We respectfully request Council direction in terms of the Village Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan in 
terms of a budget / plan which can be brought forward for public consultation purposes and so that the 
legislative timelines can be met for the adoption of the Village financial plan and tax rates bylaws.  
 
Attachments: 
       Appendix “A” - Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan  
       Appendix “B” - Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                        

 

Village of Belcarra 
Appendix “A” 

Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
(presented March 8, 2021) 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 1 
 

Table of Contents     
  

   
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction & Overview ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

General Operating Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Water Operating Fund ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Capital Plan ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Reserves & Surpluses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Property Taxes & User Fees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

General Operating Fund Details ........................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Water Operating Fund Details .............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Water Fund Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details ...................................................................................................................... 18 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances .................................................................................................................................................. 24 

Comparative Benchmarks .................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

 
 
 
 



 

 2 
 

Summary 
The Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan includes a 5% property tax increase in 2021, and 5% per year for each of the four (4) years thereafter. In addition, all water 
and WARD user rate increases have been set at 10% per annum in each year of the plan. The planned rate increases, the regular operating revenues and 
expenses and the resulting reserve/surplus transfers, together with the planned capital expenditures under the plan are as follows:  

Summary of Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan with 2020 Budget Comparisons 

Description 
2020 

Budget 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Property tax increases 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $1,373,000 $1,471,000 $1,543,000 $1,618,000 $1,635,000 $1,754,000 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $1,112,000 $1,152,000 $1,104,000 $1,065,000 $1,083,000 $1,102,000 
General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus (includes 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $318,000 $376,000 $499,000 $613,000 $665,000 $715,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $282,000 $318,000 $352,000 $390,000 $432,000 $475,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $219,000 $292,000 $331,000 $388,000 $373,000 $375,000 
Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $64,000 $26,000 $20,000 $2,000 $58,000 $100,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $123,000 $135,000 $149,000 $163,000 $180,000 $197,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $110,000 $148,000 $158,000 $177,000 $181,000 $185,000 
WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & Surplus $13,000 $(13,000) $(10,000) $(13,000) $(1,000) $12,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $395,000 $389,000 $509,000 $602,000 $722,000 $827,000 

Planned Capital Expenditures $4,259,000 $426,000 $404,000 $278,000 $264,000 $407,000 
   *Numbers based on the current draft financial plan. Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes.  



 

 3 
 

Introduction & Overview 
Staff and the Village’s Financial Consultant are pleased to present the 
Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan which includes the Draft 2021 
Budget. This document provides summary and detailed financial information 
for the Village three (3) operating funds (the General Operating Fund, the 
Water Operating Fund and the Waste & Recycle Depot Operating Fund) and 
for the Village’s 5-year capital spending program and its various reserve and 
surplus accounts. In addition, information is provided on key benchmark 
information with other comparable jurisdictions.    

Based on this information Council can decide on any further budget changes 
and related proposed property tax and user rate increases which will be 
presented to the public for feedback.  

The financial information presented purposely differentiates between regular 
and extraordinary (includes one-time, non-reoccurring and/ or designated 
items) operating expenses and revenues so that a clearer picture of the true 
cost of funding core operations is visible.   

General Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 General Operating Fund Budget includes a property tax 
increase of 5% with approximately $319,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves and surplus accounts ($376,000 including gas tax funds).  The 2021 
Draft Operating Fund Budget includes two major projects: the OCP Review & 
Update ($100,000 - funded from Community Works Gas Tax Funds) and the 
Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan ($75,000 – funded from 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds and a grant). In addition, a Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan is budgeted for at $25,000 which would be funded 
from an approved project grant.  

 

 

 

 



 

 4 
 

 

 

Taxes, 908,165 , 52%

Fees & Charges, 
145,977 , 8%

Operating Grant 
Transfers, 387,728 , 

22%

Interest Income, 
29,227 , 2%

Community Works 
Gas Tax Grant , 

57,049 , 3%

Community Works 
Gas Tax Reserve, 

125,000 , 7% Asset Management 
Plan Grant, 50,000 , 

3%

Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan 

Grant, 25,000 , 2% Stabilization Reserve 
Funding, 15,000 , 1%

Draft 2021 General Operating Fund Budget - Operating Revenues & 
Transfers

Total - $1,743,146



 

 5 
 

 

 

Council, Legislative 
Services & Grants, 96,575 , 

5%

Administration, Human 
Resources & Information 
Services, 405,113 , 20%

Municipal Hall, Legal & 
Audit, 155,588 , 8%

Planning, 35,000 , 2%

Contracted Support 
Services (Finance, 

Engineering, Website, & 
Other), 102,763 , 5%

Building & Plumbing 
Inspection / Bylaw 

Enforcement, 82,497 , 4%

Public Works & Transportation, 
277,898 , 14%

Transportation - Major Road 
Network, 129,978 , 6%

Fire & Emergency 
Operations, 11,911 , 1%

Interest & Bank Expense, 
3,368 , 0%

Centralized Support Cost 
Recovery, (149,075), -7%

Transfer to 
Community 

Works Gas Tax 
Reserve, 57,049 

, 3%

Election Expense, 
15,000 , 1%

Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan , 25,000 , 1%

OCP Review & Update, 
100,000 , 5%

Asset Management Plan & 
Related Long-Term 

Financial Plan, 75,000 , 4%

Transfers to Reserves & 
Surplus, 319,481 , 16%

Draft 2021 General Operating Fund Budget - Operating Expenses & Transfers
Total - $1,743,146



 

 6 
 

Water Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a water rate increase 
of 10%, with approximately $27,000 being available for transfers to reserves 
and surplus accounts.   

 

 

 



 

 7 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 WARD Operating Fund Budget includes a provisional rate 
increase of 10% with approximately $13,000 being transferred from WARD 
surplus to balance the budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 
 

  

Capital Plan 

A detailed 5-year capital plan is provided in this document of which a 
summary follows.  

The draft 5-year capital plan in WARD provides for the replacement of 
essential equipment such as the compactor, containers, motors and bin lids. 
The draft 5-year capital plan in Water focuses on a universal water meter 
program, leak detection and engineering for a new water system.  

The major capital projects in the General Fund include generators, a new roof 
for the public works building, security systems, vehicle replacements, road 
rehabilitation and improvements (for the non-MRN and MRN road), upkeep 
of the storm sewer system, trail improvements and a fence for the multi-use 
court.   

The draft capital plan over the 5 years (2021 – 2025 totals approximately $1.8 
million.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 9 
 

Reserves & Surpluses 

The Village’s reserve and surplus balances are projected to grow from $1.6 
million to $3.1million over the next 5 years (see graph below) based on the 
Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan including the planned reserve transfer and 
capital spending.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 10 
 

 

Property Taxes & User Fees 
 

The Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan reflects annual increases in 
water and WARD user fees of 10% to provide for the increased cost of 
providing these services and to built up reserves for important future 
infrastructure projects. In addition, the Plan provides for a 5% increase in 
property taxes for 2021 and 5% per annum thereafter. The property tax and 
user rate increases in the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan are summarized as 
follows. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 
 

 

General Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft General Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft General Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Provisional general property tax increase of 5%. 
 $1.47 million of regular operating revenues and $1.15 million of 

regular operating expenses (includes $130,000 of revenue and 
expense for Major Road Network). 

 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 
(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 50% phased in 
level for 2021.  

 Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (budget of 
$100,000), Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan 
(budget of $75,000) and Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
(budget of $25,000) with combination of reserve and grant funding. 

 $376,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to reserves and surplus 
(includes $57,000 to the Community Gas Tax Reserve Fund). 
 

 

 Ongoing provisional annual general property increases of 5%.  
 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 

(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 75% phased in 
level for 2021 and 100% thereafter.  

 Reserve and surplus transfers increasing each year to the $715,000 
level in 2025 (includes $63,000 to the Community Works Gas Tax 
Fund). 
 

 In 2021 every 1% increase in General Property Taxes will generate $8,500 of additional revenue 

 

 

 

 



 

 12 
 

 

 



 

 13 
 

 



 

 14 
 

 



 

 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft Water Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft Water Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 10% increase in water user rates for those connected to the water system 
and for those not connected to the water system. 

 $318,000 of regular operating revenues and $292,000 of regular 
operating expenses. 

 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to Water operating 
fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  

 Budgeted increase in water usage and budgeted cost increases for the 
purchase of water from the Greater Vancouver Water District (GVWD) 
and from the District of North Vancouver (for water distribution). These 
factors together are increasing by 35%.  

 $26,000 of contributions or transfers to reserves and surplus.  
 

 Ongoing 10% increases in water user rates. 
 Increased transfers to water reserves and surplus after full allocation of 

centralized support costs and increased water usage/ 
purchase/distribution costs are offset by annual rate increases. 

 $100,000 available for transfer to reserve and surplus in 2025.  

 In 2021 every 1% increase in Water User Rates would generate $2,700 of additional revenue 



 

 16 
 

 



 

 17 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 18 
 

Water Fund Debt 
 

 

 

 Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details  
 



 

 19 
 

2021 Draft WARD Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Increase in WARD user rates of 10%. 
 $135,000 of regular operating revenues and $148,000 of regular 

operating expenses. 
 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to WARD 

operating fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  
 Large increase (39%) in collection, hauling and disposal costs from the 

contractor are negatively affecting the WARD operating fund.  
 Contribution from WARD surplus of $13,000 required in 2021. 

 

 Annual WARD user rate increases of 10%. 
 Transfer for WARD surplus required in 2022 to 2024 based on new 

allocation of centralized support costs and increased hauling/disposal 
costs, which will be offset by annual rate increases in subsequent years. 

 $12,000 available for transfer to surplus in 2025. 

In 2021 every 1% increase in WARD User Rates would generate $1,200 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 20 
 

 

 



 

 21 
 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details 

2021 Capital Highlights 2022 – 2025 Capital Highlights 

 $426,000 of capital projects planned for. 
 $57,000 of funding from TransLink for Bedwell Bay Road Recessed 

Pavement Markers (Cats Eyes) project and Bedwell Bay Road Safety 
Barrier Project.  

 Funding to start universal water metering project.  
 $155,000 of capital spending for Non-MRN road improvements.  

 

 

 Approximately 1.35 million of capital spending for 2022 – 2025 with 
continuation of universal water metering planned for as well as major 
vehicle replacements and road improvements.   

 

 



 

 22 
 

 

 



 

 23 
 

 



 

 24 
 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances 

 



 

 25 
 

 

Comparative Benchmarks 
The comparisons or benchmarks presented here are for discussion purposes 
during budget deliberations. When viewing the data, it is important to 
remember that each community is unique in terms of its assessment base, its 
geography, its budgetary demands, etc. - as such no two (2) communities are 
exacting alike. 

However, when looking at comparisons in a general context certain trends 
begin to emerge which are worthy of thought and discussion. The following 
communities have been chosen as comparators to Belcarra.  

• Anmore 
• Bowen Island 
• Lions Bay 

 

This statistical data is published by the Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development (Ministry) annually and is referred to as “Local 
Government Statistics”. The value of a representative house in Belcarra for 
2020, as published by the Ministry, was $1,355,482; however, this value is 
artificially low as it is impacted by water lot values on certain properties. The 
true value of a representative home in Belcarra for 2020 is $1,987,068 based 
on negating the impact of the water lots. This updated value and the 
associated tax impact of this value has been used in the tax comparisons 
shown in these benchmark comparisons.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



 

 26 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 



 

 27 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 



 

 28 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 



Description Cost Notes

Mulch for road to Farrer Cove $838.00
This is a private road and consideration should be given to the fact that there are other private roads in 
Belcarra who do not receive this benefit

Periodic lit entrance sign displays Various options

Relatively short lifetime of past Dewalt integrated battery-inverter units.  If public works sees value in 
a small portable generator dedicated about 12 days a year to displays - great.  If not the Dewalt or 
equivalent purchases may be the best interim approach. 

Option 1 : A metered AC power drop at the village’s entrance sign.     While convenient I suspect this 
option would cost us several $1000s minimum initially.   We would then have a permanent monthly 
fee to pay to B.C. Hydro.    Unless we felt ongoing evening spotlights on our sign was worth the 
ongoing expenditure I don’t think this makes sense.    If AC power were incidentally available due to 
some other priority I would welcome the service.  Otherwise I don’t see a strong case for a dedicated 
outlet.

Cost est. $2,000-$4,000 with ongoing monthly fees   Maintenance very limited

Option 2 - Go Off Grid  - Install a standalone solar supply system with solar panels on the roof and a 
pair of deep cycle batteries installed under the roof with the necessary controllers and inverter to 
power displays. 

Cost: $800 -$1500 in basic supplies.  Several hours of installation.  Ongoing maintenance - 15-20 
year lifespan - no monthly fees )

Option 3 - A small portable gas powered generator to be added to public works and placed at the sign 
site only when the display needs power
Cost:  $1100  pretax ( for Honda’s  “Ultra-Quiet 1000i “ ) plus fuel.  Maintenance should be limited - 
lifetime 15-20 years  - no monthly fees )

Please be advised that at a Regular meeting of Belcarra Council held September 28, 2020, the 
following motion was passed: 

  “That a Council representative be appointed as a liaison to Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR); 
and             
 That the Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR) request for a donation be considered in 2021 Budget 
discussions.”

Heritage Woods Secondary 
School request for assistance - 
referred from Feb. 22, 2021 
Council Agenda To be Determined

For hosting Commencement Celebration on June 16, 2021. Tara McKinley & Pauline Nielsen, Grad 
2021 Co-Chairs, Heritage Woods Secondary School, letter received February 15, 2021 regarding 2021 
Commencement Celebration 

Communities Embracing 
Restorative Action (CERA) 
Society grant application $353.00

Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society, 
letter dated December 27, 2020 regarding a Request for a Community Grant for the Community 
Youth Justice Program.  The Community Youth Justice Program (CYJP) is a community based 
initiative of Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society. CERA is a non-profit 
registered charity incorporated in British Columbia in April 1999. The purpose of the CYJP is to 
apply the principles of restorative justice in supporting youth and strengthening communities by 
addressing youth crime in meaningful and durable ways.

Softball BC - referred from Feb. 
22, 2021 Council Agenda To be Determined

Doug Allin, Head Coach Men’s, Mark Dunlop, Head Coach Women’s & Rick Benson, 
Executive Director, Softball BC, letter received January 8, 2021 regarding Request for COVID 
Relief Funding for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 2022 Canada Summer Games

Crossroads Hospice Society - 
referred from Feb. 22, 2021 
Council Agenda To be Determined

Janice Boyle, Executive Director, Crossroads Hospice Society, letter received December 28, 
2020 regarding a Request for a Contribution

Habitat for Humanity Greater 
Vancouver To be Determined Request for support via email

Appendix "B" - -2021 Budget Items Received for Discussion Purposes

Grant for Coquitlam Search & 
Rescue

To be Determined



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.2 2021 03 08 COVID Restart Grant Claim Report.docx 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: March 8, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant  
 

 
Recommendation: 
That the COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant report dated March 8, 2021 from the Financial Consultant, be 
received for information. 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the use of COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant funds in 2020 
and to highlight the remaining grant funds. 
 
Background: 
Belcarra received $380,000 in 2020 under the Provincial COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant Program 
(Program). Eligible costs under the Program include: 

• addressing revenues shortfalls;  
• facility reopening and operating costs; 
• emergency planning and response costs;  
• bylaw enforcement and protective services like fire protection and police;  
• computer and other electronic technology costs (to improve interconnectivity and virtual 

communications);  
• services for vulnerable persons (e.g. persons living with disabilities, mental illness or addictions, 

persons experiencing homelessness or other vulnerabilities); and   
• other related costs.  

 
Attached Appendix “A” summarizes the grant funds claimed in 2020 under the various claim categories 
and outlines the remaining grant funds. Of the $380,000 received, $198,460.27 was utilized in 2020 and 
$181,539.73 remains. All of the items and amounts claimed in 2020 have been reviewed with the Local 
Government Infrastructure and Finance Branch of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. The 
Village 2020 Financial Statements will include a schedule or note which shows at a high level (according 
to the claim categories used) the use of the COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant Funds and the remaining funds. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.2 2021 03 08 COVID Restart Grant Claim Report.docx 
 

 

Description of COVID Grant Claim Items

Facility 
reopening and 

operating 
costs

Emergency 
planning and 

response costs

Bylaw 
enforcement 

costs

Costs of policing, 
fire protection and 
other protective 

services

Costs of programs and 
services for persons living 

with disabilities, mental 
illness or addictions, or 
persons experiencing 
homelessness or other 

vulnerable persons;

Computer and 
other electronic 

technology 
costs

Budgeted 
revenues that 
have not been 

collected Other

Labour disruption costs (staff paid while at home) $18,797.76

Additional staff response costs $37,917.73

Emergency supplies (masks, guards, wipes, 
gloves, etc.)

$2,617.35

Mutual aid agreement $417.21

Remote meetings costs (Zoom & Webcam) $3,086.78

Planning $700.00

Changes in tax scheme, tax notices, penalties, 
grant claim tracking, etc.

$1,890.00

Loss of revenue $133,033.44

Totals $0.00 $62,340.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,086.78 $133,033.44 $0.00

Grand Total Funds Used

Grant Funds Unused (Appropriated Surplus)

Total Grant

Appendix "A" - COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 2020 Claim & Remaing Funds

Claim Categories

$198,460.27

$181,539.73

$380,000.00



 

       
 

 
A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  

Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Council may, by bylaw, provide for the payment from annual 
general revenue, an indemnity to the Mayor and to each Councillor for the discharge of 
their duties of office;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting 
assembled enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Council 
Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021". 

2. The indemnity for the Mayor from April 1, 2021, up to and including        
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $1,857.69 monthly.  

3. The indemnity for each Councillor from April 1, 2021, up to and including 
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $928.85 monthly.  

4. The indemnities provided for in Section 2 and 3 above shall be paid by the Chief 
Administrative Officer, save and except for the provisions of Section 5 hereof. 

5. In the event of any member of Council being absent from three consecutive 
regular Council meetings, the indemnity that would otherwise be due to that 
member shall not be paid to that member.  This provision may be waived by a 
unanimous vote in favour thereof by the remaining members of Council. 

6. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

7. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of April 1, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Council Indemnity  

Bylaw No. 579, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3

prichardson
Typewritten Text



Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.3 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council 
Indemnity Bylaw.docx 
 

2 
 

8. The “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 544, 2020” is hereby 
repealed. 

  
 
READ A FIRST TIME on February 22, 2021 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on February 22, 2021 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 2021 03 08 L. Dysart, CAO, Short Term 
Rental Accommodation Policy & Bylaw Updates.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 File:  6700-03 
Date:        March 8, 2021  
 
From:       Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer   
 
Subject:    Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy Update 
 
 
Recommendations 

a) That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021”, 
be read a first and second time and be referred to Public Hearing;  

b) That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw               
No. 581, 2021”, be read a first and second time; 

c) That “Village of Belcarra Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995, Amendment Bylaw              
No. 582, 2021”, be read a first and second time.  

Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to: 

• Outline changes to the three bylaws listed above to support the implementation of the Village 
Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Policy No. 210, 
as approved at a regular meeting of Council on January 27, 2020 (Attachment 4); and 

• To introduce fees for advertising on the Village website. 
Background 
Council adopted a Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast 
Accommodation (B&B) Policy No. 210 at a regular Council meeting on January 27, 2020. Staff 
were directed to prepare amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018; Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517, 2018; and Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995 to allow implementation of the STRA 
and B&B Policy.  
In addition to changes related to STRA and B&B, updates to the Fees and Charges Bylaw related 
to advertising rates in the Village are also included in the proposed updates in this report.  
The report went to a Council meeting on March 9, 2020 and it was deferred. On February 22, 2021, 
it was lifted from the table. 
Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021 will be 
brought forward to Public Hearing after first and second reading are approved. 
 
Attachments 
1) Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021 
2) Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021 
3) Village of Belcarra Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995, Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021 
4) Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Policy No. 210 

(attached for information)  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



 

 

 
 

 

 
An amendment bylaw to update and introduce definitions related to Short Term Rental 

Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) in the Zoning Bylaw.  
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw       
No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021”. 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended: 

a) By replacing the following text from Section 104 – Definitions: 

“Home-Based Business Use means an occupation or profession, including a 
Childcare (Family) Use, carried on by an occupant of the dwelling unit for 
consideration, which is clearly incidental and subordinate to the use of the parcel 
for residential purposes. Home Based Business Uses shall be subject to the 
provisions of Section 210” 

b) With the following text: 

“Home-Based Business Use means an occupation or profession, including a 
Childcare (Family) Use, a Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) Use, or a 
Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Use, carried on by an occupant of the dwelling unit for 
consideration, which is clearly incidental and subordinate to the use of the parcel 
for residential purposes. Home Based Business Uses shall be subject to the 
provisions of Section 210” 

c) Adding the following text to Section 104 – Definitions: 

“Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) Use is a Home-Based Business 
Use that includes the rental of a Dwelling Unit or part of a Dwelling Unit for the 
accommodation of paying guests for a period of less than one month.  

Bed and Breakfast (B&B) Use is a Short Term Rental Accommodation Use 
wherein one or more rooms in a Dwelling Unit are rented for a period of less than 
one month and breakfast may be served.” 

d) By replacing the following text from Section 200 - General Regulations: 

 “210 – Home Based Business Use 

e) The use within the principal building shall occupy no more than 20% of  
the floor area of the principal building, up to a maximum of 50 square 
metres (538.2 square feet). 

f) The use within one or more accessory buildings shall occupy a total of not 
more than 50 square metres (538.2 square feet).  

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Village of Belcarra Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021                               
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Bylaw 580, 2021 Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 
510, 2018, STRA.docx 

 

g) In no case shall the aggregate floor area of all buildings used for the Home-
Based Business Use exceed 50 square metres (538.2 square feet) on a 
parcel of land.” 

e) With the following text: 

“210 – Home Based Business Use 
e) The use within the principal building shall occupy no more than 20% of the 

floor area of the principal building, up to a maximum of 50 square metres 
(538.2 square feet), except in the case of a Short Term Rental 
Accommodation Use and / or a Bed & Breakfast Use. 

f) The use within one or more accessory buildings shall occupy a total of not 
more than 50 square metres (538.2 square feet), except in the case of a Short 
Term Rental Accommodation Use and / or a Bed & Breakfast Use. 

g) In no case shall the aggregate floor area of all buildings used for the Home-
Based Business Use exceed 50 square metres (538.2 square feet) on a parcel 
of land, except in the case of a Short Term Rental Accommodation Use and / 
or a Bed & Breakfast Use.” 

f) Add the following to Section 210 Home Based Business Use (General Regulations): 

“210 – Home Based Business Use 
l) Short Term Rental Accommodation Uses, including Bed & Breakfast Uses, 

shall comply with all provisions of the Village of Belcarra Short Term Rental 
Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Policy, as may be amended from time 
to time.”  

 
Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on 
 
Public Hearing held on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021 
 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

 
 

 

 
An amendment bylaw to introduce fees related to Short Term Rental Accommodation 
(STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) and advertising on the Village of Belcarra webpage.  
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time 
to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 
1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 

Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021”. 
2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following to the table under Schedule 3 – Business Licence Fees, 
business licence categories for Home Occupation:  

Description Fee 
Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) 
and Bed and Breakfast (B&B) 

$100.00 per year 
Business Licence Fees for STRA and B&B 
may be increased annually at the discretion of 
the Village of Belcarra CAO.   

First year STRA / B&B Inspection Fee 
 

$250.00  
Second year and subsequent inspection fees at 
the discretion of the Village of Belcarra CAO. 

STRA / B&B Security Deposit (refundable) $1,000.00 
 

 
b) By adding the following to the table under Schedule 1 – General 

Administration:  

Description Fee 
Belcarra Website Homepage Advertisement   
- Big Box Banner (300px x 250px)  

$2,500.00 per year 

Belcarra Website - Logo & Service 
Advertising on Community Bulletin Board 

$500.00 per year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Bylaw 581, 2021 Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 
517, 2018, STRA.docx 

 
 
 
Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021 
 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Bylaw 582, 2021 Business Licence Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 
227, 1995, STRA.docx 

 
 

 

An amendment bylaw to establish fines for offences related to Short Term Rental 
Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B). 

 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time 
to time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Business Licence 
Bylaw No. 227, 1995 Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021”. 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995” be amended: 
a) By adding the following text under Section 14. Offences: 

“14.5 Notwithstanding Section 14.2, anyone operating a Short Term Rental 
Accommodation (STRA) or Bed & Breakfast (B&B) without a valid Business 
License may be subject to a fine of up to $1,000.00 per day, per offence, at the 
discretion of the Village of Belcarra Chief Administrative Officer.” 

b) By replacing the following text under Section 15. Business License Fees: 
“The annual business license fee payable from every person carrying on a business, 
shall pay the applicable fee as prescribed in Schedule “A” to this bylaw.” 

c) With the following text: 
“The issuance of a business license shall require the payment of all fees and deposits 
as prescribed in the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, as 
may be amended from time to time.”  

 
Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995 
Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



 

  
 

 
Title: Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation 
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY: COUNCIL  DATE:  JANUARY 27, 2020  

REVISED BY: CAO APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 
 
Purpose 
1. The Policy outlined below describes how the Village will review Business Licence 

applications for a Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast 
Accommodation (B&B) home based businesses, to provide clarity for staff, Elected Officials, 
and property owners. 
 

Policy 
2. Application Process and Business Licensing  

2.1. A STRA and / or B&B Use is a Home Based Business Use. All STRA and / or B&B 
Uses shall require a Business Licence issued by the Village. Business licences are valid 
for a one year period from January 1 to December 31. Licences must be renewed 
annually to remain valid. Licences issued after July 31 of a calendar year will be 
prorated at one half of the fee for the full year.  

2.2. The decision to grant a Business Licence for STRA and / or B&B is delegated to the 
Chief Administrative Officer.  

2.3. Applicants for a Business Licence for STRA and / or B&B will be required to provide a 
Land Title Office Title Certificate and provide a declaration that they will maintain the 
property as their principal residence while operating a STRA and / or B&B use on the 
property.  

2.4. Applicants should identify which dwelling unit will be rented as STRA and / or B&B if 
there is more than one dwelling unit on the property.  

2.5. Owners must provide the Village with proof of insurance for the intended use, including 
business general liability for a limit of not less than two million ($2,000,000) dollars per 
occurrence with respect to third party liability claims for bodily injury, property damage, 
personal injury, or death with a specific rider acknowledging the use of all or part of the 
property as a STRA and / or B&B, and showing the Village of Belcarra as an Additional 
Named Insured. Such insurance must stay in force and not be amended, cancelled or 
allowed to lapse during the term of the Business Licence.  

2.6. Decisions regarding the granting of a Business Licence for a STRA and / or B&B will 
take into consideration the following: 
2.6.1. Complaint history regarding a STRA and / or B&B at the property; 
2.6.2. Previous bylaw infractions or violations of this policy at that address which is 

known to the Village; 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 

CORPORATE POLICY NO. 210 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



Corporate Policy 210 – Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed &  
           Breakfast Accommodation 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Policy 210 - Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed 
& Breakfast Accommodation Policy.docx 

2 

2.6.3. Potential impact on neighbouring properties; 
2.6.4. Inspection by the Building Inspector 
2.6.5. Occupancy and safety considerations related to the property (e.g. is the 

dwelling unit or room proposed for STRA and / or B&B legally occupied); 
2.6.6. All other provisions of this policy; and  
2.6.7. All other provisions of related regulations, bylaws, and policies. 

2.7. Fees shall be charged for a Business Licence pursuant to Schedule 3 of the Belcarra Fees 
and Charges Bylaw.  

 
3. Location of Use 

3.1. A Short Term Rental Accommodation and / or Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Use 
may be permitted in either the Principal Dwelling Unit or in an Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(either an Accessory Secondary Suite or Accessory Coach House), or in part of a unit 
(i.e. one or more bedrooms within a Dwelling Unit). For a typical lot, with a Single 
Family Residential Use and an Accessory Secondary Suite Use or Accessory Coach 
House Use, the STRA and / or B&B Use may be permitted in either the principal and 
secondary units, or part of either unit, but not in both.  

3.2. For a property with two principal Dwelling Units, one STRA and / or B&B Use may be 
permitted per set of principal and accessory units (i.e. each set of principal / secondary 
units may have one STRA or B&B Use).  

 
4. Owner Occupancy 

4.1. The property used for Short Term Rental and / or Bed & Breakfast Accommodation 
must be the principal residence of the business operator.  

4.2. The resident / owner is not required to be on the property while the property is being 
used for STRA.  

4.3. A home may be rented as a Bed and Breakfast where up to three rooms in the house are 
rented to separate tenants on a short term basis. The owner must reside on site (in either 
the Principal or Accessory Dwelling) while the Bed and Breakfast is in operation if more 
than one separate booking is made at one time. 

4.4. Four example scenarios are provided below:  
1. Owner A lives on their property year round but plans to travel for a month. During 

this time Owner A rents out their home for Short Term Rental Accommodation 
Use.  

2. Owner B lives on their property year round but has unused bedrooms and plans to 
rent out a room in the Principal Dwelling unit from time-to-time. Owner B will 
share common space within their home with guests. Up to three rooms may be 
rented out under a single STRA booking (e.g. to a customer that requires two or 
three rooms for their family).  

3. Owner C has a coach house on their property and plans to list it year round for 
guests to stay on a short term basis. Owner C rents out their home for Short Term 
Rental Accommodation use. 

 
 



Corporate Policy 210 – Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed &  
           Breakfast Accommodation 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Policy 210 - Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed 
& Breakfast Accommodation Policy.docx 

3 

4. Owner D has three spare bedrooms in their house and rents each spare bedroom 
out to separate tenants on a short term basis, as long as sufficient on-site parking 
is available. Owner D resides on the site while short term tenants are staying on 
their property. Owner D rents out bedrooms in their home for Bed & Breakfast 
use. 

 
5. Length of Stay 

5.1. Short Term Rental and / or Bed & Breakfast Accommodations are permitted for a 
maximum stay of 30 days per stay. 

5.2. The minimum length of stay is 2 nights.  

6. Parking and Bylaw Compliance 
6.1. A property used for STRA and / or B&B must comply with all other provisions of the 

Belcarra Zoning Bylaw. 
6.2. Legal non conforming buildings may, at the discretion of the Village, be permitted to 

operate an STRA and / or B&B Use.  
6.3. Parking shall be required as outlined in the Belcarra Zoning Bylaw.  
6.4. All parking for STRA must be provided on the property (i.e. street parking may not be 

used to address parking requirements).  
6.5. If adequate parking is not provided, the Village may decline to issue a Business Licence 

for a STRA and / or B&B.   
 
7. Notification  

7.1. Operators of STRA and / or B&B in the Belcarra must identify a contact who can be 
reached at any times (including evenings and nights) in the event of emergency.  

7.2. The name and telephone number of the emergency contact shall be provided to the 
Village at the time of an application for a Business Licence. The Village shall be notified 
if the name or telephone number for the emergency contact changes.  

7.3. The name and contact information for the owner and the emergency contact shall be 
mailed or otherwise delivered, by the applicant and at the expense of the applicant, to all 
properties abutting the subject property in any direction.  

7.4. The Business Licence must be posted in the Dwelling Unit used for the STRA and / or 
B&B pursuant to Section 7 of the Business Licence Bylaw.  

7.5. The Village of Belcarra Business Licence number must be posted in any advertising or 
listing of the STRA and / or B&B.  

 
8. Noise and Nuisance 

8.1. STRA and / or B&B operators shall be responsible for notifying their guests, in any 
listings, to respect the quiet, residential, and rural nature of the Village.  

8.2. STRA and / or B&B operators shall be liable for any violation of the Belcarra Noise Bylaw. 
 



Corporate Policy 210 – Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed &  
           Breakfast Accommodation 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.5 Policy 210 - Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed 
& Breakfast Accommodation Policy.docx 

4 

 
9. Enforcement 

9.1. This policy shall be enforced as provided under the Belcarra Zoning Bylaw, Noise 
Bylaw, Business Licensing Bylaw, or other regulations as applicable. For example, the 
Business Licence Bylaw, Section 14.5 states “anyone operating a Short Term Rental 
Accommodation (STRA) or Bed & Breakfast (B&B) without a valid Business License 
may be subject to a fine of up to $1,000.00 at the discretion of the Village of Belcarra 
Chief Administrative Officer.”  

9.2. Provisions of the Zoning Bylaw, Noise Bylaw, Business Licensing Bylaw, or other 
Village of Belcarra Bylaw shall take precedence over provisions of this policy.  

9.3. Operators found to be not in compliance with this policy may have their Business 
Licences rescinded without refund, or may not have their Business Licence renewed, at 
the discretion of the Chief Administrative Officer.  

9.4. The Village will take reasonable steps to investigate and evaluate contraventions of this 
Policy and other applicable Village regulations related to a Short Term Rental and / or 
Bed & Breakfast Accommodation on a complaint basis.   

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 08\5.6 2021 03 08 Belcarra, Provincial FireSmart 
Economic Recovery Fund, 2021.doc  

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 
Date:  March 8, 2021      File No. 1850-20-25 
 
From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Subject:  Provincial FireSmart Economic Recovery Fund Grant Application 
 
 
Recommendation 
That Council approve an application for a 2021 FireSmart Economic Recovery Fund Grant in the 
amount of $500,000 that will be managed by the primary applicant, the City of Coquitlam. 
Purpose 
To seek Council approval to participate in a group funding grant application for a 2021 
FireSmart Grant with 3 other municipalities. Coquitlam will hire staff to work on FireSmart 
activities in Coquitlam, Anmore, Port Coquitlam and Belcarra. 
Background 
Coquitlam and Port Coquitlam have presented an opportunity for Belcarra and Anmore to 
participate in a group funding grant application. 
The funding program was launched by the provincial government and is part of the FireSmart 
Economic Recovery Fund. It is an economic recovery plan to create jobs and help the 
communities cope with the ongoing impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
The FireSmart Economic Recovery Fund is being administered by the Union of BC 
Municipalities and is geared towards reducing wildfire risks, jobs, and protecting communities 
from harm. 
The grant funding is a 100% provincial government contribution, with a maximum eligibility of 
$150,000.00 for a single municipality and for regional projects is up to $500,000.00. 
Grant funding objectives include but are not limited to: 

• Hiring a FireSmart Program Coordinator. 
• Hiring Public Educators. 
• Completing residential house & property inspections and giving recommendations 

towards reducing fire risk. 
The closing date for this grant funding opportunity is on March 19, 2021. 
The City of Coquitlam is prepared to take on the responsibility of applying for the grant and 
submitting the business case for funding. 
It is expected that group funding applications will be favored over singular municipal 
applications. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6















prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.17





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.18

prichardson
Typewritten Text


	3.1 2021 02 16 Special Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, overview regarding Strategic Planning           to discuss pertinent items for the Regular Council Meeting scheduled for             February 22, 2021
	L. Dysart outlined the reason for the Special Council meeting. Due to the By-Election,  several reports remain outstanding. Council will to decide which reports will be included  on the February 22, 2021 Council Agenda.
	Consensus of Council was that the following reports be placed on the Regular Council  Agenda for the meeting scheduled for February 22, 2021:
	A.  Chris Boit, ISL Engineering, will provide a verbal report
	Discussion ensued with regard to the priority of the Water System, the Water   Committee and the status of information to be provided by District of North   Vancouver (DNV).
	B.  Changes in Internal Cost Allocations
	Discussion ensued with regard to this report.
	C.  Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021
	L. Dysart outlined the policy with regard to the Council Indemnity Bylaw.
	D.  2021 Belcarra By-Election Report will be included on the Agenda.
	E.  Pooni Group Memo, Belcarra Year in Review 2020 – 2021
	Discussion ensued with regard to the benefit of an Annual Summary.
	F.  Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B)           Policy Update
	It was noted that this item was deferred at the Regular Council meeting held     on March 9, 2020. A Council motion is required to lift the motion from the table  procedurally before it may be brought back to Council.
	G. Notice of Motion – New Docks in Bedwell Bay
	Discussion ensued with regard to the Notice of Motion.
	L. Dysart advised that the items for consideration for the February 22, 2021 Council Agenda were complete. It was noted that additional reports will be discussed at an upcoming Public Special Council Strategic Planning Session.
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	Mayor Ross acknowledged that he is pleased to work with Council as a group, plus the Chief Administrative Officer and staff. He welcomed John Snell as the new Council  member.
	Mayor Ross noted that Public Works staff, Doug Bakker and Brad Smith, provided  good snow removal service during the recent snowfall event.
	7. BYLAWS
	No items.
	Jim Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the question asked by Council  to the  District of North Vancouver (DNV), with regard to various water flow scenarios.
	Certified Correct:

	3.2 2021 02 22 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	CARRIED
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	7. BYLAWS
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2021-03-08 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 8, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to introduce the Village of Belcarra Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan, to provide information related to the Village current financial position (provides context for budget discussions) and to seek Council direction in te...
	Background
	Pursuant to the Community Charter municipalities must adopt a 5-year Financial Plan and a related tax rates bylaw before May 15th of each year, and “a council must undertake a process of public consultation regarding the proposed Financial Plan before...
	A Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan document is attached which provides both summarized and detailed information related to the Village provisional 5-year operating and capital plans as well as other pertinent financial information and comparisons.
	Report
	Impact of Strategic Planning
	Council is currently undertaking a strategic planning process which may impact the Village 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan. At the time of writing this report and preparing the attached budget document the results of Council strategic planning process was ...
	2020 Financial Results
	The 2020 year-end process including preparation of the draft 2020 financial statements has been completed and the annual audit will be occurring shortly. The Village preliminary 2020 financial results are summarized below so the that Council has some ...
	The Village net debt (financial assets less liabilities) is moving in a positive direction. In 2020 net debt has been reduced by approximately $686,000. Based on the current trend the net debt should be eliminated in about 2-3 years, at which time the...
	The Village unrestricted surpluses increased by $9,000 in 2020 and its reserve funds increased by $337,000. The Village also has $181,000 of restricted and unused COVID-19 Restart Grant funds that may be used for approved COVID-19 items in 2021 includ...
	Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests (Appendix “B”)
	The items shown in attached Appendix “B” have been forwarded to budget discussions including a number of grant requests. The grants provided over the past 3 years versus the annual budgets follows. As shown, the entire grant budgets have not been used...
	Council direction is requested in terms which items from Appendix “B” that Council would like to include in the 2021 budget including those organizational grant requests with the associated dollars that Council wishes to support.
	Summary of Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan
	A summary of the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan follows including the provisional tax and user rate increases built into the plan, the regular and ongoing revenues and expenses, the resulting reserve and surplus transfers and the planned capital exp...
	Highlights in Draft 2021 Budget
	The main highlights in the respective 2021 operating budgets are as follows:
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	WARD Operating Fund
	Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home
	The overall increase in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in Belcarra, based on various scenarios, is shown below. This information is provided for discussion purposes.
	Summary
	We respectfully request Council direction in terms of the Village Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan in terms of a budget / plan which can be brought forward for public consultation purposes and so that the legislative timelines can be met for the adopt...
	Attachments:
	Appendix “A” - Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan
	Appendix “B” - Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests
	5.1 Appendix A - 2021 Draft budget document.pdf
	Summary
	Introduction & Overview
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	Capital Plan
	Reserves & Surpluses
	Property Taxes & User Fees

	General Operating Fund Details
	Water Fund Debt
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details
	Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances
	Comparative Benchmarks


	5.2 2021 03 08 COVID Restart Grant Claim Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 8, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	 other related costs.

	5.2 2021 03 08 COVID Restart Grant Claim Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 8, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	 other related costs.

	5.3 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors
	READ A FIRST TIME on February 22, 2021
	READ A SECOND TIME on February 22, 2021
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021

	5.4 2021 03 08 L. Dysart, CAO, Short Term Rental Accommodation Policy & Bylaw Updates.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:  6700-03
	Date:        March 8, 2021
	From:       Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject:    Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) Policy Update
	5.5 Bylaw 580, 2021 Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 510, 2018, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to update and introduce definitions related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) in the Zoning Bylaw.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By replacing the following text from Section 104 – Definitions:
	b) With the following text:
	c) Adding the following text to Section 104 – Definitions:
	d) By replacing the following text from Section 200 - General Regulations:
	e) With the following text:
	f) Add the following to Section 210 Home Based Business Use (General Regulations):
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Public Hearing held on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021

	5.5 Bylaw 581, 2021 Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to introduce fees related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) and advertising on the Village of Belcarra webpage.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021

	5.5 Bylaw 582, 2021 Business Licence Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 227, 1995, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to establish fines for offences related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B).
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995” be amended:
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995 Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021

	5.5 Policy 210 - Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Policy.pdf
	Title: Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation


	5.5 2021 03 08 Belcarra, Provincial FireSmart Economic Recovery Fund, 2021.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  March 8, 2021      File No. 1850-20-25
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator




